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nairnman Statement
LS

During the financial year, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$6 million, as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$3 million in the prior period. Turnover

of the Group for the year ended 31

March 2014

increased to approximately HK$9,816 million from
approximately HK$6,153 million. The rise was mainly
attributable to the continued growth of oil and gas
trading business, which was the sole contributor of
turnover during the financial year. The oil and gas trading
division contributed a turnover of approximately HK$6,151

million for the year ended 31 March 2013.

In view of the critical business environment for export-
manufacturing, the management continued to downsize
the Group’s EMS operation. As a result, no turnover was
recognised in the EMS division during the financial year,
as compared to approximately HK$2 million for the year

ended 31 March 2013.

On 28 October 2013,
subsidiary, Investment Limited
entered into an agreement with Ying Hui

Firmwill

the Company’s wholly-owned
(“Purchaser”),

Limited

(“Vendor”) and Vendor’s shareholders, pursuant to which
the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire and the
Vendor conditionally agreed to dispose of the sales
shares, representing the entire issued shares of Union
Honor Limited (“UHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Vendor, at the total consideration of HK$2,861,775,000
(the “Acquisition”). UHL, through BEM T MR AR Q7

(Guangzhou Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited, its

wholly-owned subsidiary),

indirect

is principally engaged in

processing, distribution, sales, trading and transportation
of liquefied natural gas and other auxiliary business in
the PRC. On 17 March 2014, the Purchaser, the Vendor

and the Vendor’'s shareholders entered

into a

supplemental agreement pursuant to which the parties
agreed to revise the consideration to HK$3,068,246,340.

The Acquisition was completed on 16 May 2014.

The Acquisition was a strategic reinforcement of the
Group’s existing energy trading business and enabled the
Group to expand and integrate into upstream operations

of natural gas processing, which would

improve the

Group’s overall operation flexibility and allow the Group
to further expand its trading platform. In addition, the
Acquisition would broaden the Group’s income base and

improve the financial flexibility of the Group.
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In order to reflect the Company’s plan to focus its
business in the energy industry, in particular, the sector
relating to natural gas, on 19 May 2014, the Company
changed the English name of the Company from “Ngai
Lik Industrial Holdings Limited” to “Yuan Heng Gas
Holdings Limited” and adopted and registered the
Chinese name “JLZ MR RIERBR A F]” as its secondary
name. The Company’s Chinese name “BH I ¥ EEH
R A ®]” was no longer in use for identification purpose.

Going forward, the Group will devote its resources to
seize larger market share and further penetrate into the
PRC energy market. Save for the Acquisition, the Group
endeavors to continue to explore new business
opportunities in order to create value for its shareholders.
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TURNOVER

The Group’s turnover increased to approximately
HK$9,816 million for the year ended 31 March 2014, an
increase of approximately 59.53% as compared to the
preceding financial period. The rise was mainly
attributable to the continued growth of oil trading
business which reported a turnover of approximately
HK$9,816 million during the year.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit was about HK$8.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014, a decrease of approximately 18%
as compared to the preceding financial period. The gross
profit margin for the current financial period decreased to
approximately 0.08% (31 March 2013: approximately
0.16%). Such drop in gross profit margin was mainly
caused by fierce competition with continuous challenges
from peer competitors. In order to improve price
perception, the Group narrowed down its finance cost
instead of increasing the selling prices, leading to a
decrease in gross profit margin for the year ended 31
March 2014.

EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended
31 March 2014 totalled to approximately HK$14.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 421% as
compared to the preceding financial period mainly due to
professional fees of approximately HK$2.9 million incurred
by acquisition of Union Honor Limited.

There were no finance costs incurred for the year ended
31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: approximately HK$2.7
million). The decrease is mainly due to less reliance on
bank financing as a result from the enlarged working
capital after the completion of open offer in March 2012.

WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

As at 31 March 2014, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$19.1 million (31
March 2013: approximately HK$101.6 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 81.2% as compared to the
preceding financial period mainly due to a refundable
deposit of HK$70 million paid for the acquisition during
the financial period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCING AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no borrowing during the financial year ended
2014 and 2018.

There was no change to the Group’s capital structure for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ON PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Total capital expenditure for the year was approximately
HK$214,000 (31 March 2013: approximately HK$463,000).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The net assets of the Group as at 31 March 2014 were
HK$82.7 million (31 March 2013: HK$88.8 million). The

current ratio was approximately 1 (31 March 2013:
approximately 1.1). Shareholders’ equity was
approximately HK$83 million (31 March 2013:

approximately HK$89 million) because of the loss of
approximately HK$6.2 million for the period.

Gearing ratio had not been presented (2013: nil) as there
was no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2014 (31 March
2013: HK$ nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Group’s assets were
pledged.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

TREASURY POLICY

The majority of the Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated in US Dollars and Renminbi. As Hong Kong
Dollars and US Dollars are pegged, the Group had
minimum exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation in this
respect. The exposure of exchange fluctuation in respect
of Renminbi is also limited, as there are no significant
differences of the carrying amount of the monetary
assets and liabilities which are denominated in Renminbi.
The Group still monitors the overall currency and interest
rate exposures.

of the Group Financial Review
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MPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately 20
employees (31 March 2013: 20). The remuneration
packages are generally structured with reference to
market conditions and the individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group’s employees are
normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to
enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March 2014,
save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to
ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of
Six Directors, including three executive Directors, and
three independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”).
The Directors are, collective and individually, aware of
their responsibilities to the shareholders. One of the
INEDs possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The
Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” on pages
19 to 21.
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The Board members during the year ended 31 March
2014 and as at the date up to this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianqing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Pan Junfeng

Mr. Bao Jun*

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

p appointed on 3 June 2014

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings
a year at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to
other Board meetings that are required for significant and
important issues, and for statutory purposes. Appropriate
and sufficient information is provided to the Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group’s latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board held seven meetings and the
attendance of the directors at the Board Meetings for the
year ended 31 March 2014 is set out as below:

BE_T—NF=A=+—HILFEREER
BERHZEFENER:

HITES
ITRBRE(EERTHAAE)
it

REL L

BYFHTES
RBHEL
B’ E
HEERE

# RIE-—NEA=ZHEZE

BREANEZEBARETENMBITZE
MEESERIN  EFEEBFELETORE
zallg ANBFHRT R -BEFEKER
CERESEERTRZER  WERFTH
AEBEZENBR  KMBYHREFETHERE -

R EERERITLRRM MRABE_T
A=At -RLFEEEFHRETS
EHZERBIMT -

Number of
attendance/
Name of Directors Number of Meetings
HERE
EEna ERRE
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Wang Jianging FRIFEE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFETHAEZR) 77
Mr. Pan Junfeng E R S A 6/7
Mr. Bao Jun* REIL A 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFPITES
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GR E LT 77
Mr. Wong Chi Keung HEEE 77
Mr. Tom Xie AEE R E 777
# appointed on 3 June 2014 # RZE—WNFSA=BEZF
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Board minutes are recorded in appropriate details and
draft minutes are circulated to all directors and
committee members for comments before being
approved by the Board at the next immediate meeting.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by the directors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and financial performance. The Board
delegates to the management team the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business including the
preparation of annual and interim reports, and for
implementation of internal control, business strategies
and plans developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship with each other
except those disclosed in the director biographical
details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company, notwithstanding that
every Director shall be retired at least once every three
years.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code stipulates that all
directors appointed to fill causal vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. On the other hand,
paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules
provides that such directors are to hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
As mentioned in the annual report for FY2006, the Board
decided to leave the existing Bye-laws unchanged given
the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Report
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27
January 2011 and was appointed the chief executive
officer (“CEQ”) of the Company on 15 September 2011.
He is responsible for managing the Board and the
business of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the
essential leadership skills to manage the Board and
extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
present structure is more suitable to the Company
because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee,
balance of power and authority can be ensured and
there is no imminent need to change the arrangement.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Group. Every director is fully aware
of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Directors
should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review and up to the date of this
Annual Report, relevant materials including regulatory
updates have been provided to the directors for their
reference and study. In addition, the Company arranged
an in-house training conducted by Hong Kong Institute of
Directors for all Directors, as well as an in-house training
conducted by a reputable Hong Kong law firm for Mr.
Bao Jun before his appointment as an executive director
of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view
and recommendations of the three committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high standard corporate governance
practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee (the “RC”) comprises three Independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr.
Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were
as follows:

1. to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the
Board, which shall take into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
employment conditions, and responsibilities, and
individual performance of the directors and senior
management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time; and implement the
remuneration policy laid down by the Board, if any;

2. to consult the chairman and/or chief executive
about their remuneration proposals for other
executive directors. The remuneration committee
should have access to independent professional
advice if necessary;

3. without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@ make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(b) review and approve the management’s
remuneration with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

Corporate Governance Report
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determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the
Group, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management
for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms
and otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

determine the criteria for assessing
employee’s performance, which should reflect
the Company’s business goals, objectives and
targets;

to ensure that no director or any of his
associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration;

engage external professional advisors to
assist and/or advise the Committee on issues
if necessary;

do any such things to enable the Committee
to discharge its powers and functions
conferred on it by the Board;

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T M RERER Q7
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() conform to any requirement, direction, and
regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation;

(m) exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of
the directors in relation to the remuneration
as the Board may from time to time delegate
to it, have regard to the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

(n) advise shareholders on how to vote with
respect to any service contracts of directors
that require shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice
relating to remuneration proposal if considered necessary.
The RC has begun to review the remuneration policy for
the Directors and senior management.
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The RC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 #HZE_ZT—WF=A=+—HIEFEN - FM
March 2014 and the attendance of the members is as ZE@ERT— A exH KEHEBROT:
follows:
Number of

attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
BRES HERE EHRE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GAE LT 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BE2MEE(FRE) 11
Mr. Tom Xie o A ST A 1/1
Audit Committee EVZEg
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the RZAREBAH  BERZES(EZZEE)H
“AC”) comprises three Independent non-executive —HBMIEMTEEFHAN  DAIAREHBL -

directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi
Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

BB RS E -
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The principal duties of the AC include:

(@

14

to be responsible for making recommendations to
the board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor;

to review with the group’s management and
external auditor, the adequacy of the group’s
policies and procedures regarding internal controls
(including financial, operational and compliance
controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors to be included in the
annual accounts prior to endorsement by the
board;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard. The Committee should understand the
factors considered by the external auditors in
determining their audit scope, and should discuss
with the external auditor the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commencement. The external auditors’ fees is to
be negotiated by management, and presented to
the Committee for review and approval annually;

to review the annual and interim financial reports
prior to approval by the board, with particular focus
on:

(i) any changes
practices;

in accounting policies and

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i)  significant adjustments
audit;

resulting from the

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting and auditing
standards; and

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T M RERER Q7
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(vij  compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

with regard to (d) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management, and the
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the external auditor; and

(i) the Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in the reports and accounts, it
should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;

to review the financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the
management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

to review the Group’s financial
policies and practices;

and accounting

to review the external auditor’'s management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and management’s
response;

provide a timely
in the external

to ensure that the Board will
response to the issues raised
auditor’'s management letter;
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to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for
the fair and independent investigation of such
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relation with the external auditor,
and to evaluate the cooperation received by the
external auditors, including their access to all
requested records, data and information; obtain the
comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the external auditors to the
Group’s needs; inquire of the external auditors as
to whether there have been any disagreements with
management which if not satisfactorily resolved
would result in the issue of a qualified report on
the group’s financial statements;

to obtain from the external auditors annually
information about policies and processes for
maintaining independence and monitoring
compliance with relevant requirements, including
provision of non-audit services and requirements
regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to discuss with the external auditors any
recommendations arising from the audit (if
necessary in the absence of management);

to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in
the absence of management to discuss matters
relating to its audit fees, any issue arising from the
audit and any other matters the auditor may wish
to raise;

to the engagement of the external auditors to
perform non-audit services is in general prohibited
except for tax-related services. If a compelling
reason exists to engage the external auditors due
to their unique expertise in a particular area, the
prior approval of the Committee is required;

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T M RERER Q7
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(n to review and consider the findings of internal
investigations and management’s response into any
suspected frauds or irregularities or failures of
internal controls or infringements of laws, rules and
regulations;

to agree with the Board the Company’s policy
relating to the hiring of employees or former
employees of the external auditors and monitor the
applications of such policy. The Committee shall
consider whether as a result of such hiring there
has been any impairment of the auditor’s judgment
or independence in respect of an audit;

] to report to the Board on the above matters; and

(u)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board;

The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any
activity and seek any information it requires within its
term of reference. It is also authorized to obtain outside
legal or other independent professional advice and to
secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the
AC is dedicated to review and supervise the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The
financial results for the year ended 31 March 2014 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The AC is
reviewing the internal controls of the Group.

The AC conducts at least two regular meetings a year in
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addition to other meetings that are required for significant HMEHIN  BREZESFEETLRITMAMNE -
and important issues, and for statutory purposes.
The AC has held three meetings during the year ended #HE-_ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE BEZEZX
31 March 2014 and the attendance of the members is as BE&EZR{IT= &% KELEBRIT:
follows:
Number of

attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
BRElE R EHRARH
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGHE L 3/3
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BB AEE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Tom Xie AR L 3/3
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit
Committee had reviewed the Company’s annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the interim report
for the six months ended 30 September 2013.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
(the “NC”) comprises Mr. Wang Jianging, the chairman
and the executive director of the Company and two
Independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. Leung
Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were
as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, qualifications, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. Sufficient
biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to
enable them to make an informed decision;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the chairman and the
chief executive of the Company;

(d) to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual
vacancies of directors for the Board’s approval;

(e) to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;

() to do any such things to enable the Committee to

discharge its powers and functions conferred on it
by the Board; and
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to conform to any requirement, direction, and
regulation that may from time to time be prescribed
by the Board or contained in the constitution of the
Company or imposed by legislation.

The NC has held one meeting during the year ended 31
March 2014 and the attendance of the members is as
follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of

attendance/

Name of Members Number of Meetings
BEKE HEXRY @AY
Mr. Wang Jianging TEERE 1/1
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming ZGAEL 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BZREE(FE) 11

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and
ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standard. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statement of the Group is
set out in the Report of Auditors on pages 33 to 34.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2014, fees payable to the
auditor of the Group for audit and non-audit services
amounting to HK$1,300,000 and HK$200,000
respectively.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board, through the AC, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to F1.2 of the Code, the appointment of the
company secretary should be dealt with by a physical
board meeting rather than a written resolution. The
appointment of the current company secretary was dealt
with by a written resolution in September 2013. The
Board considers that, prior to the execution of the written
resolution to appoint the current company secretary, all
Directors were individually consulted on the matter
without any dissenting opinion and there was no need to
approve the matter by a physical board meeting instead
of a written resolution.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate
with shareholders and investors, the board and the
Company maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders mainly through the Company’s financial
reports, annual general meeting and other general
meetings.

The Company also maintains a website at
http://www,ngailik.hk, which has been changed to
http://www.yuanhenggas.com after the change of the
Company’s name, as one of communication channel for
the shareholders and investors. For any enquiries, the
shareholders, the investors, media or the public may
contact the Company directly, contact details of which
are posted on the Company’s website.
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
held an annual general meeting. The attendance of the
directors at the meeting was as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of

attendance/
Name of Directors Number of Meetings
EEns HERY EHRRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Jianging FRBELEE 1/1
Mr. Pan Junfeng E R A 0/1
Mr. Bao Jun* REFE 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEBTES
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GRAE LT 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung B|RAEAE 1/1
Mr. Tom Xie WERE L E 1/1
# appointed on 3 June 2014 # RZT—WFESA=ARZHR

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there had been
no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by shareholders
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.
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Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, either any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100)
shareholders may make requisition in writing to the
Company:

(@ to give to shareholders of the company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b)  to circulate to members entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of
not more than one thousand (1,000) words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquires to the board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquires to the
Company by post or delivery to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 4102,
41/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Wang, aged 45, has extensive experience and
business network in the energy and trading industry. Mr.
Wang obtained his Bachelor’'s degree in Industrial
Management Engineering from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding
College (now known as the Jiangsu University of Science
and Technology). He is also the general manager of
Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd.

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Bao, aged 46, has over 20 years of experience in
project investment, construction and operation
management. He obtained his bachelor degree in
Engineering from Jiangnan University (JI & A2 (formerly
known as Wuxi Polytechnic University, #E $5$% T 2 E2p57)
in 1989. Mr. Bao joined Guangdong Light Industry Design
Institute (&R P T R 5TFE) as an engineer from 1989
to 2000 and was responsible for the research and
development of the manufacturing technique of various
biological-engineering and chemical engineering projects
such as the design and management of amino acids
production plant and brewery. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Bao was the vice president of Guangzhou Circle
Energy Company Ltd. He was involved in a series of oil
refineries, power plants construction and acquisition
projects.

Mr. Pan Junfeng

Mr. Pan, aged 57, is also the deputy general manager of
a shipping company that principally engaged in oil and
bulk goods trading business in Yangtze region.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, aged 46, has extensive knowledge
and experience in risk management of financial
instruments, treasury business and financial derivative
products. He has served DBS Bank for eight years and
was Senior Vice President in the Treasury and Markets
Division upon his departure from the bank on 22 May
2009. Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry
in 1996 with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity
Derivatives Asia Department. He had served a few other
financial institutes before joining DBS Bank Ltd as a
financial product specialist as well and had held various
roles in business development, trading and risk
management.
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Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese
nationality, holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree
of Science (1990) from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Master degree of Science in Mathematics (1993)
and a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Mathematics (1996)
from the California Institute of Technology, and a Master
degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology.

He also has been in the position of independent non-
executive director for FU JI Food and Catering Services
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1175) since 8 July 2013.

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong, aged 59, holds a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and CPA Australia; an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a
Responsible Officer for asset management, advising on
securities and advising on corporate finance for Greater
China Capital Limited, under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company
secretary of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly
known as Guangzhou Investment Company Limited) (stock
code: 123), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, for
over ten years. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock
code: 214), Asia Standard International Group Limited
(stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), China Nickel Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2889), China
Ting Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3398), ENM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 128), Golden Eagle Retail
Group Limited (stock code: 3308), Paliburg Holdings
Limited (stock code: 617), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 78), TPV Technology
Limited (stock code: 903) and Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1176), all of these
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Wong has over 34 years of experience in finance,
accounting and management. Mr. Wong was also an
independent non-executive director of Pacmos
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1010) (retired
on 1 July 2014), First Natural Foods Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1076) (resigned on 21 November 2013) and
FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited
(provisional liquidators appointed) (stock code: 1175)
(resigned on 24 June 2011), all of these companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tom Xie
Mr. Xie, aged 64, has years of management experience
with a Hong Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a
Master’s Graduation Certificate in Gemology, both from
China University of Geosciences (Beijing) in 2012.

Mr. Xie is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.

CHIEF OPERATION OFFICER

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou, age 40, holds a Master’'s degree in Economics
from the Central University of Finance and Economics,
the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading
during his service in China National United Oil
Corporation as well as the fuel oil spot and future
markets managing of its branches in Asia and America.
He was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution
divisions. Mr. Zhou has over 10 years of extensive
working experience in energy field with broad business
network, and is familiar with global energy environment
and market.
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eclors’ Report
SSHRSSE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in note 34 and note 20 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 35.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully
paid share capital are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2014.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Pan Junfeng

Mr. Bao Jun (appointed on 3 June 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, one third of directors for the time being shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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None of the directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of securities (the “Listing Rules”)
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 March 2014, the directors and chief executive
of the Company had the following interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which (a) are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of SFO); or (b)
are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) are
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Report
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Number of Shares held

PR ¥ i 43 81 B
Capacity/Nature of Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors interest position position total holding
Exns S SNy Be KRB HRESE
(Note 3)
(Bt 5£3)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 3,292,968,787 — 322.97%
corporation (Notes 1 & 2)
TEE R EE R (E1k2)
Pan Junfeng Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
corporation (Note 1)
&5 1E REEEE S (M)
Note: B 5 -
1. Mr. Wang Jianging is deemed interested in, and duplicated, the 1. FTRBEAAERAREEREBRRKEEEGRAA

636,504,351 shares which Frontier Global Group Limited is
interested. Frontier Global Group Limited is wholly owned by
Touch Billion Limited. Touch Billion Limited is held as to 75% by
Champion Golden Limited, in which (i) Mr. Wang Jianging has
50% of the voting right; and (i) Mr. Pan Junfeng has 25% of the
voting right.

2. Mr. Wang is also deemed interested in, and duplicated, the
2,656,464,436 shares Champion Ever Limited is interested.
Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianqging.

3. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of
the directors, chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which (a) are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of SFQO); or (b) are required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) are required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests in respect of options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme approved and adopted
on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
rights to acquire shares”, none of the directors, their
spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
subscribe for shares of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year, and at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements and as disclosed under the heading
“Related party transactions and other disclosures”, no
contracts of significance, to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year are disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no transactions,
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. To the best of
the Director’'s knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this
annual report, none of the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report is a connected
transaction.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

PERSONS

As at 31 March 2014, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company
whose interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above) had interests
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company which were recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

TERRREMATZROREBERDERE
RARBRE

R-ZE—ME=ZA=+—B BARFERER
7R BB G 5E3361E 17 B 2 & it A ad 8 -
THBRR(PREXEERETETHRABRED
MHERkOREERE 2D AR —EA T H
BRARABRND - HHEROREEETHA R
BHRABNEERNARBEIEZTHABRIN
RARARD - HEARDRERETHEE S

Number of Shares held

Fi i 43 81 B
Capacity/Nature of Long Short Percentage of
Name of Shareholder interest position position total holding
BREZE & S Yy Ba 9 HRESE
(Note) (Note 4)
(fF3E) (M 7%4)
Frontier Global Group Beneficial interest 636,504,351 — 62.43%
Limited (Note 1)
ERRHEEFERAR ExmEzm ()
Touch Billion Limited Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
Corporation (Note 1)
REEE R (M)
Champion Golden Limited Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 62.43%
corporation (Note 1)
REEE R (M)
Champion Ever Limited Beneficial interest (Note 2) 2,656,464,436 — 260.54%
BB R AR B (Msr2)
Ever Express Group Beneficial interest 330,450,571 — 32.41%
Holdings Limited
KEZERBR QA BEaEn
Cheng Xu Family interest (Note 3) 3,292,968,787 — 322.97%
EEES Rk (M1 EE3)
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Note:

1. Frontier Global Group Limited is wholly owned by Touch Billion
Limited. Touch Billion Limited is held as to 75% by Champion
Golden Limited, in which () Mr. Wang Jianging has 50% of the
voting right; and (i) Mr. Pan Junfeng has 25% of the voting right.

2. Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianqging.

3. Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianging and is deemed
interested in, and duplicated, the interests Mr. Wang is interested in.

4. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital

of the Company as at 31 March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no
person had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

Directors’ Report
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# A > Touch Billion Limited 275% # & £ Champion
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Bz BmIORAE
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TEEFRHEER
REEEER PR F N EERR
BEZESLMT:

Sales HEH %
— The largest customer — BAEF 43
— Five largest customers aggregated — EREFAG 92
Purchases HEEE %
— The largest suppliers — mAHER 34
— Five largest customers aggregated — ERMEEAT 92
None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders &&=  FEIHMEA TG EETMAEES X

(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers during
the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Code”). Having made specific enquiry
of all directors of the Company, the directors of the
Company have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 March 2014.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014

32  Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T =M EEBRAER A A

BABERE
ARFz ARBUREREENHEEEBEA
AEBRHLHIARERFEELEENRG ZE L
BERBE -

BIESETESRIZTA

AARERMEETAEAREELTELR
F2RFFACTH) - BAKAFA2BES
EHABEHE AATEERABE TN
FZA=+—BULEFEAN—ERTTAREE
2 %8 -

REZRRERE
BRETHAREHZAARANRIBEERA -
ARARBE-T-—NF=A=+—ALFE
M —EMFETRAFREREARKRE
BT OREDTE BTN Z25% °

BB
ARTRRBRFEBEAG LIRS —HRAR
DEREDBERS GHMTARDA LK
AT -

RREFEE

ET@EE
e

FE —T-NFA=1H



Independent Auditor’'s Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF

YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
RERAERARAT

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS NGAI LIK INDUSTRIAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (Formerly known as
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 35 to 90, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
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noependent Auditor's Report

48 X7 % SN e R E S

Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March 2014, and of its loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GOBERNEHMWEBWARR

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—NF=ZA=+—HBLFE

2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
Turnover EEH 7 9,815,676 6,152,787
Costs to fulfil contracts TRE R Z KA 8 (9,807,372) (6,142,664)
Net income from oil and BRERAREHR
gas contracts and RS2
consultancy service WA SRR 8,304 10,123
Other income HAth g A 10 148 84
Administrative expenses TR X (13,170) (10,170)
Finance costs B & Bk A 11 - (2,747)
Other loss HibEE 12 (1,280) -
Loss before tax BRELATE 1B (5,998) 2,710)
Income tax expense Fr 1S i 2 i 13 (232) (220)
Loss for the year REFEE 14 (6,230) (2,930)
Other comprehensive AEEFEHEMEEERA
income for the year
Item that may be reclassified s f&? A]5E B 7 57 28 73 18
subsequently to profit or loss w2 IEH
Exchange differences arising BMEMEEZ
on translation E W =R 125 45
Total comprehensive expense AFEEXERTRE
for the year (6,105) (2,885)
Loss per share % E5 18 18
— basic — EX (0.617%& T) (0.297% 7T)
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nsolidated Statement of Financial Position
x O 91 75 1A 5 ¥R XK

At 31 March 2014
=N+ =f=+—§H

2014 2013
—E—ME —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FHET
Non-current Assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREE 19 543 461
Interest in an associate R E QR 2w 20 - =
Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary W —HHB AR ZIES 32 70,000 =
70,543 461
Current Assets REEE
Trade receivables H 5 e W K 21 1,596,340 982,233
Other receivables, deposits HMEWRIE E&
and prepayments M TE 5RIE 22 316,127 317
Tax recoverable BEEERE 1 269
Bank balances and cash RITETRRE 23 19,079 101,586
1,931,547 1,084,405
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B HEMNER 24 1,592,913 986,489
Advance from customer RETENMNK 22 315,592 =
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNERRETER 2,968 1,536
Amount due to an associate B — B & A Bl 5RIA 25 38 38
Amount due to a shareholder BN —RREKIE 25 7,750 7,750
Tax payable AR IE 98 217
1,919,359 996,030
Net Current Assets RBEEFE 12,188 88,375
Total Assets less MEER
Current Liabilities REBEE 82,731 88,836
Capital and Reserves B AR Rk
Share capital A& A 26 101,959 101,959
Reserves f# & (19,228) (13,123)
Total Equity s 82,731 88,836

The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 90 S35 Z FB 7 4B BREERE N == —N
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of FEXA=+tHEEZo ELEETE BT
Directors on 30 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf Z|EEHRKKHKE

by:

WANG JIANQING BAO JUN
ITRE RE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZ k)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

TR

mMOBEDBAHER

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—NF=ZA=+—HBLFE

Share Share Other Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses equity
Hit i
BRE KRHEE 4 BREHE BitEHE “st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TET FET FET TET TET
(Note)
(B 33)
At 1 April 2012 R=ZZE—=—FMA—H 101,959 171,200 71,372 214 (253,024) 91,721
Loss for the year KEEEE - — — — (2,930) (2,930)
Other comprehensive income AEEHEMEEEA
for the year — — — 45 — 45
Total comprehensive income AEE2EBARS) B
(expense) for the year — — — 45 (2,930) (2,885)
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—8° 101,959 171,200 71,372 259 (255,954) 88,836
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - (6,230) (6,230)
Other comprehensive income AEFEME2EERA
for the year — — — 125 — 125
Total comprehensive income AEE2EBARZ) B8
(expense) for the year — — — 125 (6,230) (6,105)
At 31 March 2014 R=ZE—NF=A=+—H 101,959 171,200 71,372 384 (262,184) 82,731
Note: The other reserve represents the credit arising from the capital MisE: HMEEERBEAEEAAATRALEBAESLSZ

reduction of the Company where the par value of each existing
share was reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the cancellation
of HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each existing share in prior

years.

HRE RAHIRBEEHERAARND0.09E T
BREA  BE8REERNZEEROIETTHEIKE

0.01& T °
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nsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
O ERE X

or the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-T-MF=A=t+-BLFE

2014 2013
—EF-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REET
Loss before tax R ATEE (5,998) (2,710)
Adjustments for: BTIEEELRHE:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BERRBEZNE 110 12
Interest income B ON (123) (82)
Interest expense B - 2,747
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BERZBIER 16 =
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 2 EBZE L EHFI v KLBEERE (5,995) (33)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e W AR 2L (614,107) (1,351,634)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and prepayment HtWEWER  Re Rk

TEAS FRIEE AN (315,810) (317)
Increase in trade payables B 5 ENBRFIE M 606,424 889,811
Increase in advance from a customer L 315,592 =
Increase (decrease) in other payables Hib T ER R R FERT B R

and accruals (R ) 1,432 (3,881)
Cash used in operation ReXBmEzR e (12,464) (466,054)
Income tax paid BEER (351) (625)
Income tax refund 882 R % 268 =
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReXBmEsRe T8 (12,547) (466,679)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BERZHEZ

plant and equipment FT {8 %8 6 =
Interest received B WA B 123 82
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BERZ (214) (463)
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary WHE-—BHBARZENES (70,000) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEZOMRERESFE (70,085) (381)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEH
Fund raised from discounted bills with recourse MEERENAZBEMES ES - 469,993
Repayment to related companies BEBAH AR ZFTE - (11,943)
Interest paid [EAREN S - (2,747)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEERHMERES FR - 455,303
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RAeRkBE4SEBAZ AL FE (82,632) (11,757)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENERE R

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ReEEEH 101,586 113,343
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgHo w8 125 =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE ~ REAZEERHSEZBEEAREK:

YEAR, represented by bank balances and cash ROEFREE 19,079 101,586
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”), together with it subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Its immediate holding company and
ultimate holding company were Frontier Global
Group Limited and Champion Golden Limited
respectively, both are limited liability companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (The “BVI”).
Its ultimate controlling shareholder is Mr. Wang
Jianging. Upon the completion of the acquisition of
a subsidiary and the issue of new shares on 16
May 2014 as disclosed in note 32, its immediate
and ultimate holding company has been changed
to Champion Ever Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the BVI which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Wang Jianging. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the design and
sale of electronic and electrical products and
entered into a number of oil and gas sales and
purchase contracts with a number of counterparties.
Starting from 16 May 2014, upon the completion of
the abovementioned acquisition, the Group is also
engaged in the production and sale of liquefied
natural gas. Please refer to note 3 for the
accounting policies and notes 21 and 24 relating to
assets and liabilities arising from these oil and gas
contracts.

n O 81 15 ¥ R Bif 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-_Z-—WF=A=+—HILFE

-RER
TEMRRERERAR(AIBROITES
BEERAR)REWE AR ATHRBIAR
SENDD—BERBREEIMKILIZARE
RAr - HRORBEBERZMEBRA
Al Em e MERBZERARAKBIRIK
SEBERAR ZARA—HMREBE
ZHEHE(IRBRERHESDEMK LI ZE
MEARAR MERKRERAAR
Champion Golden Limited @ :2 2 A J3 —
Fﬁﬁ@i%ﬁﬁﬁ%%‘fﬂ%ﬁiZﬁﬁEf@E
DAl ARBRIEHAFATEBEE b”\_
T—MERATABRE—FHRBA
BT IR TR 18 (L0 BT 5E32FT #E 7R) - /H\EP
Fﬁ&E’ﬂT RARIEZE ABEABRAR
ZARA—HREBRE XS M
HEEIE?%?EE%%W‘E%Z%BE"ET o 7R
NRAlFMBERERFTELEMB 2 bt
RERzREIER —EANIKE -

A Eﬁﬂ?&-’f—&%

ABITTE 5 W& TTIR
RARTZINEE iéi“% 2

AREETERERAREEETRESRE
CHBEZEHEFHIALEZEABRARA
ﬁ,@\ﬁ £ oM E—NFRA+HT
B bR REBERNEEE KRB
ERIERAR - B2HW 3BT
KARWFH2ARAS R ERB R XA
REVNFMEXAZEERARE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE—_T-—NF=A=1+—HLEFE

40

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(the “HKICPA").

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7
Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS11 and
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Except for as described below, the application of
the above new or revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TZ MR ERER 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
“Separate Financial Statements” and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) “Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures”, together with the amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance. HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
is not applicable to the Group as it deals only with
separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is
set out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
that deal with consolidated financial statements and
HK-SIC Int — 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor has control over an
investee when (a) it has power over the investee, (b)
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and (c) has the
ability to use its power to affect its returns. All
three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control
was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has
been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an
investor has control over an investee.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the
Group has changed its accounting policy with
respect to determining whether it has control over
an investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in
respect of its involvement with other entities as at
1 April 2013.

2.

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
1 “Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income”. The amendments introduce new
terminology for the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, the “statement of
comprehensive income” is renamed as the
“statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income”. The amendments to HKAS
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the
other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax.

Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or
loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TZ MR ERER 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
£ O 81 75 3R T B 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income” (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Amendments to
HKFRS 16 and
HKFRS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 36

Amendments to
HKAS 39

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

HKFRS 14

HK(FRIC) — Int 21

Investment Entities'

Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods
of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle?

Regulatory Deferred Accounting®

Levies'

2.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-F-mF=A=t+-ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income” (Continued)
it Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014
g Available for application — the mandatory effective date

will be determined when the outstanding phases of
HKFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions

& Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

The directors anticipate that the application of the
above new and revised HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

3 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

. any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to
be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date of the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associate used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method,
investment in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts received and receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured

reliably.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Consultancy service fee income is recognised when
the services are rendered.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Turnover of the Group includes the gross proceeds
from oil and gas sales contracts, consultancy
service fee income and revenue of EMS business.

Cost to fulfil contracts includes the gross amounts
of oil and gas purchase contracts and cost of sales
of EMS business.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives, using straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchanges prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are charged as expenses when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from the ’loss
before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

3 breach of contract, such as default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;
or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
receivables arising from oil and gas sales contracts
entered into by the Group, they are assessed for
impairment individually.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of receivables
arising from oil and gas sales contracts, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a receivable arising from an oil and gas
sales contract is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified either as financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and amounts due to a shareholder and
an associate) are measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continueq)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when and only
when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment trade of receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2014,
the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$1,596,340,000 (2013: HK$982,233,000), there
was no impairment of trade receivables recognised
for both years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debts, which include amount due to a shareholder
of the Company disclosed in note 25, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new
share issue, the issue of new debts or the
redemption of existing debt.

EXERER
AEBZEANEREEEREREKERE
sfFEEEETFE ERAEEERERN
AREREZH  TRBRRGERKER -
AEECBBRBEN—FRETE -

AEEZERNRBRBERL (BEWME25
BREZENARR—RRZHKE) B
EMREEFEERBRARBHEAARGRE
@ (BREBTERARER)

ARBEFTEHRIEARE - R
BEZ— 8D EEEEREARARER
BAMMHEZRR -REEFZ2EZ AN
SERBRBEITHRMD  BIHEHX
BORAER FHHEBELARE -

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ¢@MIA
(@)  Categories of financial instruments @ SMIENE
2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables B Rk EW R
(including cash and cash (BEEzEES
equivalents) ZLHHER) 1,615,634 1,083,819
Financial liabilities eHMER
Amortised cost # §8 A A 1,603,669 995,813
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SWMIA(E

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)
The Group’s major financial instruments
include trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables,
and amounts due to a shareholder and an
associate. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest risk
and commodity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Foreign currency risk management

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have
entered into certain foreign currency
transactions, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

Assets
BE
2014

MERREBEERBE
AEEZIESRTABEESR
Hib BUWARR |RITEFRRE -
B MEMBEMAERR - AREMN—
PR N — B2 R B 2 5RIE » %
FeRTEZFBERSHEEH TR
BE-HEzEZemIAEEZRRE
EmEER(EERR - FIXE R R
BmERER - EERRRRH
B AR o WmAERZFE R 2K
Bﬁ%kﬁ’\"l—ﬁi EEEEENMEEZX

[ B DA 4R 3 E 2 18 1B 15 A B
jﬁ*ﬁ@liﬁz%ﬂﬁ °

FEAR
HERRE
ARRAAESHHBARCTIET
SER 5 - B A B B S E
B o

B3R5 50 45 R B - AN 4R B A S O 3t
BrEEEEREEEE Y EEE
o

Liabilities
Bff
2013 2014 2013

—E-NE —T-=F ZFT-NE —T-—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FHET FAT

United States dollars E7T
(“USD”) 1,429 1,465 - =
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 210 393,179 - 392,241
Hong Kong dollars BT 931 1,025 - —
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SWMIA(E
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HEERREEEERKRE(E)

62

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

As Hong Kong dollars is currently pegged to
USD, management considers that exposure to
exchange fluctuation in respect of USD is
limited.

The exposure of exchange fluctuation in
respect of RMB is limited, as the management
considered that there are no significant
differences of the carrying amount of the
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in RMB.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances at the
end of the reporting period is considered as
insignificant.

The Group does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management

TERE &)

SNERBEE(E)

R TTEREXITTHE  EEE
RARBAXTERZEXRNSRRE
BEMR -

HREEERRAARBHEZE
KEERBECREELEEARE
R AHBEAREEBZEZKS
EEREBAR

FI#m B

RBEMBERE  AKEEERZE
BMRITAEF RS R E N XA R
BRIMTRE -

AEEW ENEE DK - A
EEEEENERR AEBRNE

monitors interest rate exposure and will FEREPERNTERR
consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

Commodity price risk BRERERE

The Group is exposed to the risk of AR ASEEETFRHERETL

fluctuations in prevailing market commodity
prices of oil and gas products as the Group
entered into oil and gas purchase and sales
contracts with its customers and suppliers.
The Group manages these commodity price
risks through entering into oil and gas
purchase and sales contracts within a short
period of time. Accordingly, the Group
minimises its exposure to such risk and is
subject to short term price fluctuations in the
prevailing market commodity prices in the
intervening periods between entering into the
oil and gas purchase and sales contracts.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The Group has one sales and one purchase
oil contracts which are entered into with the
counterparties closed to the year end date
and the delivery was made in early April
2014, the commodity price risk is considered
as minimal.

Credit risk

The Group, through the Company’s two
wholly-owned subsidiaries, entered into a
number of contracts to purchase and sell oil
and gas. In general and as part of the
Group’s prudent measures, a short duration
is kept between each buy and sell
transaction. Such oil and gas contracts
entered into by two wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company involve eleven (2013:
eighteen) suppliers and twelve (2013: eight)
customers who are independent from the
Group. About HK$4,254,152,000 (43% of total
gross amount of oil and gas sales contracts)
(2013: approximate HK$1,159,267,000 (19% of
total gross amount of oil and gas sales
contracts)) of contracts that are settled in
cash on a gross basis are entered into with
one single customer that is a company
established in the PRC (the “PRC Entity”) and
its subsidiaries established in Singapore and
Hong Kong, which Mr. Wang Jianging, the
chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company and the ultimate shareholder of the
Group, is a general manager of the PRC
Entity. Mr. Wang Jianging has no shareholding
in the PRC Entity. The PRC Entity and its
subsidiaries only act as one counterparty as
a supplier or a customer for each of the sales
and purchase transaction entered into with
the Group. At 31 March 2014, there is no
outstanding amount due from the PRC Entity
and the amount due from PRC Entity’s
subsidiaries is HK$ 1,358,268,000 There was
no outstanding amount due from the PRC
Entity and its subsidiaries at 31 March 2013.
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6. EMIA(H)

(b)

BHEREERRRRICK(R)

BmE®ERE &)

REBRAMTIA AEERHFT
BT DHER—ODBEAHA
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Pt B 7 (B AR B BR AT AR B AR o

EEEE
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Ft+=—Z2(C2—ZF: NZ2)BIR
REBREF o #4,254,152,000%
TR E MR RXAREESNREE
43%)(= F — = 4F : 491,159,267,000
BTUEABARRXARARBEESLE
E10%) ZABRXARBEEAL
TH—ZE-REREREFNE R
EBKM 2B RRFI I IR %R
EENRGHEE - ZBFEFA—BR
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RAEFERTRERFAEBRHK
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ZRIE - PHERERENBARE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SWMIA(E
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HEERREEEERKRE(E)

64

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As part of the measures to mitigate the credit
concentration risk, each individual debtor has
been monitored closely and on an ongoing
basis. In addition, gross amounts of oil and
gas sales contracts are settled either by letter
of credit or bills issued by the customers’
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and are
receivable with an average credit period
ranging from seven days to six months after
the bills of lading date of delivery.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalent, deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flow.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
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6. EMIA(H)

(b)

HHERBREREERBEK(R)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REHELERE(E)
Weighted
average 0-60 days or Total Carrying
interest repayable on 61-180  181-365  undiscounted  amount at
rate demand days days cash flows 31 March
0-60H R=A
n#E 5% REREL =+—-B2Kk
FHFHE ER{EE 61-1808 181-365H REAE HE
% HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TFTHER FTHET FTHT FTET
2014 —E—-M§
Trade and other BHREMEMERERK
payables and accruals i ER - 1,595,881 - - 1,595,881 1,595,881
Amount due to a shareholder  fEf —fiz ik R 77 E - 7,750 - - 7,750 7,750
Amount due to an associate A —REE REHIE - 38 - - 38 38
1,603,669 - - 1,603,669 1,603,669
2013 —B-=§
Trade and other B 5 K H A ER K
payables and accruals &R - 795,939 192,086 - 988,025 988,025
Amount due to a shareholder — FE —fL B R B - 7,750 - - 7,750 7,750
Amount due to an associate e — RS RRFE - 38 - - 38 38
803,727 192,086 — 995,813 995,813
Fair values © AY¥HE

The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

THMEERERBEZAFERA
RZEBRAERNURESRED
i & € °

EERR HBHEHAACTHEREAR
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TURNOVER 7. EB¥H
2014 2013
—F—-mF =zT—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAT
The Group’s turnover includes: AEBZEEBOIE:
Gross proceeds from oil and BHERARBEEN
gas sales contracts ZPTISRIE LR 9,815,676 6,150,668
Consultancy service fee income B AR EHA - 620
Revenue of EMS business EMS 7 U 2= - 1,499
9,815,676 6,152,787
COSTS TO FULFIL CONTRACTS 8. REHAHNZHEAE
2014 2013
—EF—0mE —T—=f
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT
The Group’s cost of AEEZEKEDNZ
fulfil contracts includes: [PENOECE
Gross amounts of oil and gas ARk RAREER
purchase contracts B X B EE 9,807,372 6,141,195
Cost of sales of EMS business EMS 2 75 $5 & Ak A - 1,469
9,807,372 6,142,664
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable and operating segments are identified
on the basis of internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker (i.e. the chairman
and chief executive officer) for the purpose of
allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are
as follows:

EMS business — Design and sale of electronic
and electrical products.
QOil and gas — Entering into oil and gas sales
transactions and purchase contracts and

provision of consultancy
services in relation to such
contracts.

Segment results
For the year ended 31 March 2014

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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9. AHWEH
AE2REEDMEBLEHTELERK
EEXTERTREZ)AOEERED
MEFEEXREMERERHZAEEE
MOz AMRERER B -

AEBEZAHERKLEDHWT

EMS % 75 — RARHESFRE
BREM -
Al R RA — RIVAHRMRRAR
RXD BEAGHNURIE
HEBRZEEHN
Z 7B AR -
pil|

%éf_%f HE=H=1—HILFE

EMS Oil and gas

business transactions Consolidated
EMS Vop:i P4

E 35 XARARXS =8

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FiET FiET FiET

Turnover - - 9,815,676 9,815,676
Segment results DELELE — 8,304 8,304
Unallocated income Ao WA 148
Unallocated expenses RAOBEAX (13,170)
Unallocated other loss &% Bt H b &5 48 (1,280)
Loss before tax B 7 A E 18 (5,998)
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A3

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. 2HBER(E)
Segment results (Continued) o & (F)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BT -F-F=1—HIIFE
Oil and gas
EMS business transactions Consolidated
EMS vapiiPa
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Turnover =S 1,499 6,151,288 6,152,787
Segment results N 30 7,346 7,376
Unallocated income F NN 84
Unallocated expenses Koz (10,170)
Loss before tax R Fi AT ES 18 (2,710)
Segment assets and liabilities THEAERAR
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as HRERZEERREVERDEERR
the chief operating decision maker does not review AEEREMEHNOMEERAR &
them for the purpose of allocating resources and BE2IEHEEREE -

assessing performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments

The following table provides an analysis of the

Group’s segment turnover from oil
(EMS business)

transactions and revenue

and gas

by

geographical location of customers and the Group’s
non-current assets by geographical location of the

assets,
delivered or services rendered:

irrespective of the origin of the goods

Segment turnover from

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-_Z-—WF=A=+—HILFE

2 HEFR (&)

& 75

TRREEAEBERFPIWEE 52 KA
BHRERARRRG 29 BEEBRKZE

(EMSEB) K AEBIZEEMTHE D2

ERBEEZHNT MW E S

AT AR 7S 2 SRR i -

Revenue Non-current

oil and gas transactions (EMS business) assets
RBER#K
RARRSNBEEHE i 2 (EMS ¥75) F¥RBHEE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—T-NE —T-=F Z¥-ME —FT-=F ZF-MNF —2-—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK’000
TERT FHT TER FTAT TET TAT
Singapore Eiimb 5,713,570 527,346 - = - =
Malaysia BRAE B 2,749,057 1,117,381 - — - —
The PRC, B
other than Hong Kong (BRI 799,415 4,336,638 - - 15 20
Japan BA - 30,208 - - - -
Taiwan =) - 139,715 - — - —
Philippines FRE 553,634 = - = - =
The Middle East R - - - 1,499 - -
Hong Kong BB - - - - 70,528 441
9,815,676 6,151,288 - 1,499 70,543 461
Information about major customers FEEFER

Segment turnover from five (2013: five) customers,

its subsidiaries

including the PRC Entity and
established in Singapore and Hong Kong(as defined
in note 6(b)), in the oil and gas transactions
amounted to approximately HK$8,135,479,134 (2013:
HK$6,091,664,000) in aggregate, which individually
represents more than 10% of the segment turnover
from oil and gas transactions.

REABRRARGRGZER(ZT—=4F:
RRA)EFBETREERERITNE X
BB 2 KB AR CEE R M E6b) 2
7 BB & ¥ 58 A H 498,135,479,1347% (=
f—:i 6,091,664,000/8 7T) * bA{E Bl 51

BEEABRAARIRGDBEEER
10% °
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0. OTHER INCOME 10. H#l A
2014 2013
—F—-mEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHE T
Interest income B A 123 82
Sundry income HIEKA 25 2
148 84
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MERE

The amount represented interest on discounting
bills with recourse.

ZEBENTERBZBREEZMNE -

12. OTHER LOSS 12. HittE#E
2014 2013
—E—0mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Exchange loss RN ] 1,280 =
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FigHEX
2014 2013
—EF—mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current year REE
Hong Kong Profit Tax BBENER 232 220

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

70  Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited & = A Z R H MR 2 7
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13.

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

No provision for Enterprise Income Tax is made as
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries have no
assessable profit in both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
statutory tax rate of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries is 25%.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$11,988,000
(2013: HK$4,441,000) as at 31 March 2014 available
for offset against future profits and those can be
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred taxation
assets have been recognised in relation to tax loss
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before tax per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

13.

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the
HEZZ—

year ended 31 March 2014
¢£ﬂ£+—5¢¢§

Frie®ipx ()
P AR ) 2 o B R A R I R B 4R R 1

ERERAT DN AT EFRECERS
P -

BEPEARANBLEMESF EZ(D
E¥RMBHEDRCEMESREAEBIEH -
KRB R BB AT ZEEHREKE25% °

RBEMERES  AEEEARADAZEE

—MMEZA=+t—HZREBEBEHA
11,988,000 7T (=& — = : 4,441,000/%
JC) ¢ Al 8 R 2R s B K B B8 3XIA 7]
fRERAS 8 o ARG F B8 22~ r] A AT
WS ERHEEEEREEHBEEE -
RAEEZHBHRILERGEBEZKE
2R AREK 2B RATEEZ R
T

2014 2013
—E—MmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFH#ET FHET
Loss before tax B %4 AT 5 18 (5,998) (2,710)
Tax at domestic income tax rate of R P15 B A &
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 16.5% (ZF—=
16.5%) 5t & 2 B 18 (990) (447)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAIFIF X 2
for tax purpose %)EH&E/ - 2 =
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBMBA Z
for tax purpose mwE (17) ©)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RFERFIBEE 2
s 7 & 1,245 672
Utilisation of tax losses previously not EhF Z B AR ER Z
recognised RIEEE - (46)
Others i) (8) 50
Income tax expense for the year REEMBRIE 232 220
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the year ended 31 March 2014

Z-—ME=A=+—HILFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

S 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. XEEER

2014 2013
—F—MmE ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHER FHE T
Loss for the year has been arrived AEFEEBEENGR:
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 15) E= M (M 5E15) 1,977 2,151
Contributions to retirement benefit HEt BT 2 RIKNEF
scheme of other staff FT &It K 533 395
Salaries and other staff benefits HekEMETREA 2,287 1,841
Total staff costs BT A #ER 4,797 4,387
Depreciation of property, plant and WME BMEREEZ
equipment e 110 12
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EAD B & 1,300 800
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BER
and equipment R BE 16 —

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
directors and the chief executive of the Company

were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2014

5. EERTHARZHE

ENHENARAEERITHARE 2 B
EHBOT:

BZEZ-_T-ME=ZA=+-ALEE

Mr. Wang Mr. Pan  Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr.
Jianging Junfeng Hoi Ming Chi Keung  Tom Xie Total
E3- ¥ REH HZH H##
K& it b3 b3 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FTEL FEL FET FET
Fees we 300 180 240 180 1,200
Other emoluments Hi &
Basic salaries and allowance BEARE S RAER 642 - - 642
Contributions to RIKEFIFHEIH R
retirement benefits schemes 135 - - 135
Total emoluments e mE 1,077 180 240 180 1,977

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 7t T #RER B R 2 7



Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—NF=ZA=+—HBLFE

15.  DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 15, EERTHAZ2ME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-T-=E=-A=t-ALEE
Mr. Wang Mr. Pan Mr. Lo Dr. Leung  Mr. Wong Mr.
Jianging Junfeng  Wai Hung Hoi Ming  Chi Keung Tom Xie Total

IRE Ak B RiBH BZH R
Pt Pt b Bt b b st
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

(Note 2)
(K E2)

Fees e 300 300 187 180 240 180 1,387
Other emoluments Hiof &

Basic salaries and allowance EXF e REH 572 - - - - - 572

Contributions to retirement RIRAE R G B

benefits schemes 19 - - - - - 19

Bonus (note 1) TEAT (I 7E1) 123 = = = = = 123
Total emoluments Mews 1,114 300 137 180 240 180 2,151
Note 1: Discretionary bonus was determined based on the Mizr1: BSEANBEERTBRKSY Y —BHEA

financial performance of a subsidiary established in the AvHMERBEE -
PRC.

Note 2: Mr. Lo Wai Hung was resigned on 4 January 2013. Mizto: ERBEENR-T = AEARME
Mr. Wang Jianqing is also the chief executive of the TERELENARARG ZITHER  FX
Company and his emoluments disclosed above T v B e E E A (T B4R T IR
include those of services rendered by him as the MRS HE o
chief executive.
Neither that chief executive nor any of the directors RN E—T—MER-_T—=F=F=+
waived any emoluments in both years ended 31 —BIFWESEE  BETRES LA
March 2014 and 20183. BEEWNELMEH -
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the year ended 31 March 2014
—E—NFE=ZA=1+—HLEFE

S 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 16. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments EFRREAEB AR EsHMALZF -
working for the Group, three (2013: three) were the HPp=F2CZE—=F:ZR)ATAHER
directors and the chief executive of the Company RIEERITHEH  MEF2MEEIA
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures EXMisE1s 2 EE R -
in note 15 above.
The amendments of remaining two (2013: two) BTMEBECE—Z=ZF:Z8)AT M2
individuals were as follows: ONE
2014 2013
—E—ME —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA& T
Basic salaries and allowance EAH o KERM 840 840
Contributions to BRI FIET B
retirement benefit schemes 12 12
852 852
2014 2013
—E—MNF —T—=
Number of Number of
employees employees
=P\ BB AE
Their emoluments were within HEZBHENNTF
the following bands: #E -
Nil — HK$1,000,000 078 7t £1,000,0007% 7T 2 2
17.  DIVIDENDS 17. RE

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed
during both years, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

M B8 F E W 19 8K

MERKE -

74 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 7t Z A& 2K A R A T
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic

on the following data:

loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE_Z-—NE=A=+—-HILtFE

18. BRE#R
AAFBAAEEERENER DR
THI St -

2014 2013
—F—MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FAT
Loss &5 18
Loss for the year attributable to REATEERERNEEZ
owners of the Company for the ZIN/NETE ¥ SN i
purposes of basic loss per share RFEEEE (6,230) (2,930)
Number of ordinary shares
EERYE
2014 2013
—E—MNF —=2—=
Number of shares & &8
Number of ordinary shares for the BT E G EAREE 2
purposes of basic loss per share TR EE 1,019,592,858 1,019,592,858

Diluted loss per share are not presented as the
Company does not have any potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 March 2013 and

2014.

KRBE-T-=#R-F-ME=A=+
— B - mRA A A B
B SREFEALEZ) -
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S 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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r the year ended 31 March 2014
(2T NNF=ZA=+—HLFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. W% -BERRE

Leasehold
improvements,
office equipment,
furniture, and

fixtures
HEmE
BiE -BMAE
R HE
REE
HK$’000
FAT
COST BN
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FmMA—H 11
Additions NE 463
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 474
Additions NE 214
Disposals HE (22)
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF=RA=+—H 666
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Ritin e
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FmMA—H 1
Provided for the year FEEAE 12
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 13
Provided for the year FEEE 110
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NMF=A=+—H 123
CARRYING AMOUNTS FREE
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NNE=HA=+—H 543
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 461
The above items of property, plant and equipment Ltz BERXEEEDULESE
are depreciated on a straight-ine basis at the ERTHIFRFTE:
following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements 20% HEMEEE 20%
Office equipment 10%-20% PWAERME 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 10%—20% RILREE 10%-20%

76  Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 7t Z ¥R =K A R A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the
HEZZ—

year ended 31 March 2014
¢£ﬂ£+—5¢¢§

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

200 R—EHENTz kR

HK$'000
FA&TT
Cost of investment, unlisted WEKA  FELET
As 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 WKR-ZT—=%=F=+—HK
—E-mE=A=+—AH —
The Group had an interest in the following N2 —=FR-FE—NEF=A=+—H -

associate as at 31 March 2013 and 2014:

Class of
shares held

Place/country

Name of entity of incorporation

AEBERATNHBE ABI A

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued capital held
by the Group Principal activity

AEERHAES
&F M BE 32 Ft #% B% BITRAEE
EREZE w2 ER =3l ZES TEXH
Victor Bond Limited BVI Ordinary 49% Inactive
el SN HEELRES T TEER

The summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s associate is set out below:

AEBEBERR 2 MBEEMBEZEIINT :

2013 & 2014
—E-=ER
—EF—NF
HK$’000
FHET

Total and net assets

BERENFE

78

AEED
BEFE

Group’s share of net assets
of an associate

16— B 2

RAEZ
38

The associate of the Group had no revenue, profit
and other comprehensive income for both years
ended 31 March 2013 and 2014. There were no
share of profit/loss and reserve of the associate for
both years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014.

$%@Z§§Hﬁ’ﬁ%’&jﬁ“ﬁz T—:¢&
Iz 5£T§7F‘J&E/rﬂl’£\ﬁ%17\ o EC%Z?::?
—=FRZE—MF=A=1+—HBIWE
FE VEIGZBERRNZ G B
BREHE -
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r the year ended 31 March 2014

Z-—ME=A=+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables arise from oil and gas sales
contracts which are settled either by letter of credit
or bills issued by banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
are receivable with an average credit period ranging
from seven days to six months after the date of
delivery of commodity to customers or by
telegraphic transfer.

The following is an aged analysis of these
receivables presented, based on the invoice date,
at the end of the reporting period.

21.

S 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5 EWRH
AHRRARBEERDNZE SRR
DURBEEREEFERBERTSEEN
MZBTEHZEARKERLEE - F
BEENEERINEFAHRAEES
HEFEEERNEATE -

ATRMES KRR REHERE
REZARETZRE DN

2014 2013

—E—MNF —FT—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FHE T
Current-30 days BN Z=30H - 385,413
31-60 days 31%E60H 1,596,340 583,207
> 90 days Q0B M k - 13,613
1,596,340 982,233

No receivables had been past due at the end of
the reporting period.

Trade receivables denominated in currencies other
than functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

RBERERE  ZFREERBER
%qo

NHEREEER ZIEERUINE RS
B2ESRWERREINOT :

2014 2013

—E—-MF —E-=4

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#T FHE T

RMB AR - 385,805

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 7t T #RER B R 2 7
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the
HEZZ—

year ended 31 March 2014
ME=ZA=+—HILEE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HitEWRE REREAR
PREPAYMENTS
2014 2013
—F—MNFE —T—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FHE T
Prepayments for purchase of oil (note) & E Al < T8 KA
i) 315,561 —
Utility deposits UNEES$i 5 312 317
Other receivables H b & U 508 215 =
Other prepayments H A TE 5/ 18 39 =
316,127 317

Note:

At 31 March 2014, the Group has entered into one sales

and one purchase oil contracts and the delivery was
made in early April 2014. At the end of the reporting

period,

full purchase amount has been paid to the

supplier and the corresponding sales amount of HKD
315,592,000 has been received from the customer and

included in the advance from customer in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

23.

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less. The short-
term bank deposits carry interest at market rate of

0.24% (2013: 0.08%) per annum.

fad: RZT—WF=ZA=+—H0 AEBEE:]
NHER—MBELRHEY  BEBER=F—
MEMAMRET - RREHERE - 2200
EXRBEEXINFHER  MAEBEEKE
315,592,000/ TE B B FWER - W B 5 A 4R
EHMBRRBFRAZEEBMZK

BTEERRS
BIEGREIHAA=EARUTZE
HRITER - SHBRTHERIEMIS T
R0.24% (ZFE— =4 :0.08%) T 8 °
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the year ended 31 March 2014

Z-—ME=A=+—HILFE

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables arise from oil and gas purchase
contracts and which are granted by suppliers with
an average credit period ranging from seven days
to six months after the bills of lading date of
delivery.

The following is an aged analysis of these payables
presented, based on the invoice date, at the end of
the reporting period.

24.

S 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 5B R
BRRAARBEANZESMABR
BHEEENERREEMGLAEA
BATSE2THERBEL -

ATHMENENERNBERSERE
BRERBMETZRE DT

2014 2013

—E—NEF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Current-30 days BNHR Z=30H 550,632 384,532
31-60 days 31260H 1,042,281 584,940
> 90 days 90H M - 17,017
1,592,913 986,489

Trade payables denominated in currencies other
than functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

NEBAEEER ZNEEHIAINIE L
BZ2EZREMNERKEINMT

2014 2013

—E—MF =%

HK$’000 HK$’'000

T#T FET

RMB AR - 392,241

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 7t T #RER B R 2 7



Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HEZZ— ¢£ﬂ£+—5¢¢§

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/AN 25, BEN—URR /—-BHEEATD2HE
ASSOCIATE
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and Z

26.

repayable on demand.

The amounts represented:

EHEAMER 2B RARIRM
}EO

%% RIS

=11l

()  amount due to Frontier Global Group Limited, () ENEBREREXEEBRAR KA
a company incorporated in the BVI, of A/7,750,000%8 (= & — = i :
HK$7,750,000 (2013: HK$7,750,000), which 7,750,000 7T) * AR R B R K
was an immediate holding company of the BEAMKY X AARQA ZHH
Company; 2y /N
(i)  amount due to an associate of the Group of iy BNAEE - —MBMERZRES
HK$38,000 (2013: HK$38,000). 38,000/ L (=& — = £ : 38,000/%
JL) °
SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRAE
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
EREHEE Bix&BE &8
HK$ HK$'000
BT FHETT
Authorised: ETE
As at 1 April 2012 and RZTE—Z-FHWHA—BRK
31 March 2013 and —E—=F=ZA=+—HRK
31 March 2014 —MmE=A=+—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE:
As at 1 April 2012 and RZTE—Z-FHA—HBRK
31 March 2013 and —E—=F=A=+—HRK
31 March 2014 —E-NFE=/A=1+—H 0.1 1,019,592,858 101,959
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE—_T-—NF=A=Z1+—HLEFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustee. For
members of the MPF Scheme, the Company
contributes lower of 5% of relevant payroll costs or
HK$1,000 per person per month/HK$1,250 per
person per month since 1 June 2012 to the
Scheme, which is matched by employee. In
addition, the Group’s contribution to a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC are
expensed as fall due while the state government in
the PRC undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees
of the qualified staff in the PRC. The Group is
required to contribute certain percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited 7t T #RER B R 2 7
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AEBABEFMEREBZAEREER
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MR

By 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE-_ZT-—NFE=A=+—H

EFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. REHEAE
The Group as lessee AEBERAEBEA
2014 2013
—E—-NE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHE T
Minimum lease payments paid under AFEEN ZPEKEE
operating leases for its premises MOKEHRS
during the year 1,081 405

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment for future minimum lease payment
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

RBEMBRE - NEBEARE A AT HH
REBOBNZ AKX REHEAEZE

BRI

2014 2013

—E-lE —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ET FHET

Within one year —F RN 676 1,081
In the second to fifty years inclusive MEERTF -

BIEEREMF - 676

676 1,757

Operating lease payments represented rental
payable by the Group for certain office premises.
Leases were negotiated for an average term of one
to two years.

REMEFRBREAKERETHAE
XENZHEES BHONKEEER " F

HHEHBA—EMEF -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE—_T-—NF=A=1+—HLEFE

29.

84

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER 29. EBEALXRZREMKE
DISCLOSURES
Apart from those transactions and balances BREEVBREBEB2EEARIS R EH
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated Financial UETXHBEZTEEEAS ZHMIN
Statement and the compensation to key AEBREBEE_TE—NFER=_ZT—=F=
management personnel as disclosed below, the A=+—BHLFEBEFREHAEALR
Group does not have any related party transactions Z °
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.
Compensation of key management personnel TEEBABZEM
The remuneration of members of key management AEBCZTEEEEKRE(ESERITHA
of the Group other than the directors and chief HBINZ2FEMEMT :
executive during the year are as follows:
2014 2013
—T—-MNE —z—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Basic salaries and allowance AR & RER 960 960
Contributions to retirement AR ARAE A ET 8 5k
benefit scheme 12 12
972 972

The remuneration of the directors and chief
executive of the Company is disclosed in note 15.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2014,
the Group entered into a number of oil and gas
sales and purchase contracts with the PRC Entity,
and its subsidiaries established in Singapore and
Hong Kong, which Mr. Wang Jianqging, the
chairman, chief executive officer and executive
director of the Company, is a general manager of
the PRC Entity, amounting to approximately
HK$4,254,152,000 and HK$3,197,273,100 (2013:
HK$1,159,267,000 and HK$4,653,314,000)
respectively. The PRC Entity and its subsidiaries
only act as one counterparty as a supplier or a
customer for each of the sales and purchase
transaction entered into with the Group. At 31
March 2014, there is no outstanding amount due
from the PRC Entity and the amount due from its
subsidiaries is HK$ 1,358,268,000.There was no
outstanding amount due from the PRC Entity and
its subsidiaries at 31 March 2013.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TZ MR ERER 2 7

ARFEERTRAE 2SR 15
P8 8

o REBE=_ZE—NWF=A=+—AH1
FE-AEEHEAFHEE R ERFTMNE
NEABKY 2B ARG ZE A ML
AXARNEBEEAN 282N A
4,254,152,0007% 7T %.3,197,273,100/8 7T (=
T — = £:1159,267,000 T K&
4,653,314,000% 7T) * M A Q A EFE ~ 17
BeRxpTEET2ErEATPEE
BB HAHEELKEWNBARE
EREFH HRAKBEIUCZEEEE
RGPAEHEHAIES - RZE—UF
A=+ B UEHRARTENERFH
ERRE MEVKEKNBARZKES
1,358,268,000/ L - R=ZTE—=F = A=
+—H YEERTENERTEELE R
HEARFKIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE_Z-—NE=A=+—-HILtFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. ZXATHBBMRTER

COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company at RMEPLERE - NQ A 2 01§k 0,
the end of the reporting period is summarised as KE AT
follows:
2014 2013
—E—MNF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFi#&T F& T
Non-current assets EMENE E
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZRE 3,511 8,330
Amount due from a subsidiary JE s — i f B
UNGIE /@] 79,674 81,320
83,185 89,650
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H A FE UK BR R 215 =
Bank balances and cash RITEFERE2 335 3,463
550 3,463
Current liabilities mEAEE
Other payables ﬁﬁﬂﬂ’éﬁﬁﬁ%’\ 2,809 1,350
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE AT Bt B A Rl 3k IE 223 223
3,032 1,673
Net current (liabilities) assets mE (BB EEFHE (2,482) 1,890
Total assets less current liabilities REERTEDAER 80,703 91,540
Capital and reserves IR A K f#
Share capital g A 101,959 101,959
Reserves (note 31) 5% 8 (MF 3%31) (21,256) (10,419)
Total equity WS BER 80,703 91,540
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE—_T-—NF=A=Z1+—HLEFE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 3. ADARE
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BiimE HibGEE Rt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET THET TFTAET
(note)
g:)
THE COMPANY PIN/NE]
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——4F
mA—H 171,200 71,372 (252,945)  (10,373)
Loss and total comprehensive ZANFEEEE &K E®E
expense for the year i 48 58 — = (46) (46)
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%F
=A=+—H 171,200 71,372 (252,991) (10,419)
Loss and total comprehensive AFEEHEREE
expense for the year S 4858 — — (10,837)  (10,837)
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—mF
=HA=+—H 171,200 71,372 (263,828) (21,256)
Note: The other reserve represented the credit arising from the BiE: HbEBERABRMES 2 EMRE - A
capital reduction where the par value of each existing Rl % 38 A% Lk AT F E B R B R 1D 2 R X
share was reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the AFEH0.098 T - BRRA KN 2 EEH0.10
cancellation of HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each A TCRIR E0.018 T °
existing share in prior years.
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 32. “ERKSEHE

On 28 October 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement with Ying Hui Limited (“Vendor”) and
Vendor’s shareholders, pursuant to which the
Group conditionally agreed to acquire and the
Vendor conditionally agreed to dispose of the sales
shares, representing the entire issued share of
Union Honor Limited (“UHL’), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Vendor, at the total consideration
of HK$2,861,775,000. Both the Vendor and UHL
are limited liability companies incorporated in the
BVI. Mr. Wang Jianging, the ultimate shareholder of
the Company, has equity interest of 62.89% of the
Vendor and is controlled by Mr. Wang Jianging.
The Vendor is therefore a connected person of the
Company.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TZ MR ERER 2 7

R-E—=F+A-+/\B AEBEHZE
BERAR(EANDERBEABREIL—H
HE - Bt ASEEKGHEEKE -
MEFBEHLREELEHERDBNE
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B EITRA) - 8K E A2861,775000
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262.89% k- Bt - EHAARR Z
BiEAL -



32.

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (Continued)

On 17 March 2014, the Group entered into a
supplemental agreement (“Supplemental SPA”) with
the Vendor and the Vendor’s shareholders pursuant
to which the consideration of the acquisition has
been revised to approximately HK$3,068,246,000.
The acquisition was approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a special general meeting held
on 8 May 2014 and the acquisition was completed
on 16 May 2014.

According to the Supplemental SPA, the total
consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by (i)
cash consideration of HK$70,000,000; (ii)
HK$2,998,246,000 by procuring the Company to
issue and allot to the Vendor’s shareholders of a
total 4,283,209,057 shares (“Consideration Shares”)
at an issue price of HK$0.70 per Consideration
Share. As at 31 March 2014, cash consideration of
HK$70,000,000 has been paid and presented as
“Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Mr. Wang Jianging has been the controlling party
of the Company since the completion of mandatory
unconditional cash offer on 3 January 2011 and
obtained the control of the Vendor and UHL on 11
January 2013. The acquisition of UHL is considered
as a combination of businesses under common
control and will be accounted for by using merger
accounting in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations”.

32.

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014

;
HE-_Z-—NE=-A=+—RHILFE

HEBRBE(E)
RZZE—WF=A++tH AEEEREH
REFRRITL—Hhatwa(BrE
EmazEl Bt WEREBEEBIT ALY
3,068,246,000/% 7 - Z HWBEE R Z=ZZ
—mMERANBETZRERI AL
EARARKEIE BER-_ZE—NEHRH
A+7RBEMK -

BEFAZEEHGZ KESHE LR E
Ty 8 AT 75 3 2 A+ (i)70,000,0007% JT
LAIR & XA+ (i0)2,998,246,0005% T J5 1% 18
fR{F AR B LA R R B B 190.7078 7T 2 3%
TEREFBREZFITRE R A&
4,283,209,057/% & 7 (X EB I h]) T -
RZZE—MNE=ZA=+—H B KB
70,000,000/8 7T B X » WA 4R & B 75 ik
MBEE2IN A E —BHBAR 2K

&)

ITRBEAENRZZE——F-—A=BATKR
HMEEEHFRSRBEONR-E/AR
AZENA YR =T—=F—A+—H
BISE J7 R AR 2 12 4 o MKOPE B AR Y
BREHAREHER AHREFE
SRR BRI ARENAHZAHE
FRIERAHEAEARK
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE_ZT-NF=A=+—BLFE

33.

88

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

During the year, the directors of the Company re-
assessed the presentation of the oil and gas
contracts by reference to the practice of certain
industry peers on the presentation of such oil or
gas contracts, and determined to change the
presentation of turnover and related costs of the
Group in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and the
related notes to the consolidated financial
statements. For the current year presentation,
“Turnover” and “Costs to fulfil contracts” are
presented in the financial statements which includes
gross proceeds from entering into oil and gas sales
contracts and gross amounts of oil and gas
purchase contracts respectively. Whereas, in the
previous years’ financial statements, “net income
from oil and gas contracts and consultancy service”
is presented in the financial statements of the
Group which was derived from gross amounts of
oil and gas sales contracts, gross amount of oil
and gas purchase contracts, related costs of oil
and gas sales and purchase contracts and
consultancy service fee income, net of expense.
Comparative figures have been re-presented to
achieve consistent presentation (see notes 7 and 8
for detalils).

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TZ MR ERER 2 7
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FA ARBEEELEETREYHMA
MABRXKARGHN 2K BT
EAEARRKRRAHONES  XIRTE R
ERGeRaREMEEBRARKIAR
RAMBHRRABEHNEZ2IAEEER
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RP2Y B2 ERERTABEEXR
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EASEZHBREZS  BAaBEXR
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BAWzZRE DHRXAREEAHN
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March

2014 and 2013 are as follows:

fm © B §5 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-_Z-—WNF=A=1+—HLFE

34. WEBARFHE
KRR FE—HER_TE—=F=H=
+—BZHBRRIFBLOT :

Nominal value Percentage of nominal
of issued  value of issued share
Place of ordinary share/ capital/registered
incorporation/ Place of registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company Principal activities
AAERE
=345 ERTRE/
EER/ HMEFEE
HEBASEHE B/ Ml SERE EMRAEE 2B TEEH
2014 2013
—E¥-NE —T-=%
Ample Power Limited# Samoa Hong Kong USs$1,000 - 100 Inactive
ERARAR EED Bk 1,000% 7o TEex
Din Wai Digital Limited# Samoa Hong Kong US$100 - 100 Trading of electronic products
ERHBERAT BED Eib 10057 HEETER
Din Wai Services Macao Macao MOP1,000,000 - 100 Inactive
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited# 2P P 1,000,000} P9 7 R
ERRBORMBFEERE)ERRA
Elite Novel Limited# BVI BVI USs$100 - 100 Investment holding
BEERDA Y- )il ABRAES 100% 7T REER
Firmwill Investments Limited BVI BVI us$t 100 100 Investment holding
BRREBRAR EBRAEHS HERUHS 1T REZR
Fully World Limited” Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Oil trading
FEERRA BR e 187 AHES
Grand More Enterprises Limited# Samoa Hong Kong Us$100 - 100 Trading of electronic products
RECERERRA EED i 100% 7T BESTEM
Ngai Lik Enterprises Limited# Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic products
BRNCEBRAR BE EE 3,000,000 7T BEBTEM
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34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

es o the Consolidated Financial Statements
Bf 555 ¥R % Bt 51

or the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-T-MF=A=t+-BLFE

34, WEARFRE(E)

Nominal
value of

issued Percentage of nominal
ordinary  value of issued share

Place of share/ capital/registered
incorporation/ Place of registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company Principal activities
XATHE
BT EETRE/
L@ HMEAEE
HEASEHE B/ sfibl EEBY HBRAEE ZER TEEH
2014 2013
—F-mE —ZT-=F%
Ngai Lik Industrial Limited# Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive
BNEXBRAF BE Bk 10,0007% 7T Tmex
Ngai Lk International Trading Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Trading of electronic products
BRNBRESERRA EE EE 18T BEETEM
Techno Sea Limited* BVI BVI Us$t 100 100 Investment holding
HEERAA ERELEE EBRLHEES e REER
Pacific Rise Holdings Limited BVI BVI US$100 - 100 Investment holding
(“Pacific Rise”) EBRAEE EBRREE 100X 7T REZR
ERSEERAA(ERD)
Yiqin Investments Limited BVI BVI Us$t 100 100 Investment holding
BRYRERT EERTES RBRAES e REEKR
BMNLERRHEEFRA A note a) PRC PRC US$990,000 100 100 Oil and gas trading
BENEERmREERRAR" (Hita) HE R 990,000% 7T AARRARES
* They are subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company. * ZERNRBARRBEFEZWB AR °
# They are the subsidiaries of Pacific Rise, which was # ZERRRERZHBRAR MERE %
undergone voluntarily winding up since 29 September ——FhAAZ+hARETERESR E5
2011, the assets and liabilities of Pacific Rise and its SEEEMBRARZEERABBEANMKRILEL
subsidiaries were deconsolidated from that of the Group AHARNER R-_T—NHWE=A=+—H
since then. The winding up process has been completed BREFETMK
as at 31 March 2014.
Notes: B 5
(@) The subsidiary is set up as wholly-owned foreign @) SHBATIRBERS L EMAENIEGEE
investment enterprise registered in the PRC. BB .
(b) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities () BEWHBATNBEER-_ZE—NE=A=1+—

subsisting at 31 March 2014 or at any time during the
year.
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Financial Summary
A7 5 ik 2

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-NE —T—=F T ZT——F ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FET FHET FET

RESULTS #i5
Turnover £ 9,815,676 6,152,787 2,001,847 675,518 856,141
(Loss) profit before taxation R AT (B8 % F (5,998) 2,710) 125,379 (104,139) (31,096)
Taxation charge BIEZ (232) (220) 277 (76) (98,302)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(E8) &5 H (6,230) (2,930) 125,102 (104,215) (129,398
Attributable to: ARA TR
Owners of the Company VN/NETE Y DN (6,230) (2,930) 125,102 (104,215) (129,398)
Non-controlling interests R ER - - - - -
(6,230) (2,930) 125,102 (104,215)  (129,398)
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—EF-NE —ZT-=F T —T——F ZT-IZF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHET FET FET FHET FAL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREHE
Total assets BEE 2,002,090 1,084,866 336,185 46,608 164,306
Total liabilities BAfR (1,919,359)  (996,030)  (244,464)  (179,088)  (192,571)
82,731 88,836 91,721 (132,480) (28,265)
Equity (deficits) attributable to AARER ARG ER
owners of the Company (B4 82,731 88,836 91,721 (132,480) (28,265)
Non-controlling interests IR AE RS - — — - —
82,731 88,836 91,721 (132,480) (28,265)
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